

# **BEAM Tracking Portal**







## CONTENTS

1. Introduction	4	11.4 Additional User Information
1.1 Help		12. Appendix - Device Specific
2. The Devices List	4	12.1 Iridium Extreme™
3. Map	5	12.2 Shout Nano <sup>TM</sup>
3.1 3D Map		
4. Inbox	11	
4.1 Inbox - All Devices		
5. Sent Messages	14	
6. Address Book	15	
6.1 Rules		
7. Canned Messages	18	
8. Compose Message	19	
9. Geofence	20	
10. My Device	22	
10.1 Device Information		
10.2 Latest Position Information		
10.3 Device Configuration		
10.4 Check-In Schedule		
10.5 My Devices		
11. User Profile	27	
11.1 User Profile		
11.2 Emergenchy Contact Information		
11.3 External Services		

33

## 1. Introduction

This user guide describes the principal functions and operation of the BEAM Web Portal. The portal provides a cartographical means of visualising GPS locations and messages sent from a device. You may also view lists of all messages sent to and from the device and edit device and account configuration information.

Please note that some of the features described in the user guide will not be available due to the device type or portal version being used. Additionally, logos and images in this guide may be slightly different than on your portal. For more information, contact your service provider.

## 1.1 Help

Help is available on most pages by clicking the question mark icon shown below in the title bar.



Figure 1 Help Icon

## 2. Administration

If you have registered more than one device, the top right hand corner of the portal will display a list of devices to which you have access. Figure 2 shows a drop down list of devices visible to the current user. The dropdown list can be used to select either a single device or all devices. The text displayed is the "friendly name" for the device that is entered on the My Device page. The menu options available to you below this list depend on whether you select a single device or all devices, the type of device selected, and the portal version. If you only have one device, this drop-down list will not appear and you will automatically be shown the menu options that apply to your device.



Figure 2 List of Visible Devices



## 3. Map

The Map page is used for mapping the location of your device. You have the option of using Google Maps or Bing Maps. To alter your choice, visit the User Profile page. Once logged in, you will be shown the last reported position for your device (or devices).

You can navigate (move your view) in two dimensions. To pan (move the map), do one of the following:

- Click and drag the map
- Press the up arrow on your keyboard to move north
- Press the down arrow on your keyboard to move south
- Press the right arrow on your keyboard to move east
- Press the left arrow on your keyboard to move west

Additionally, you can zoom in or out pressing the + or - keys on your keyboard. You can move the cursor over a location and use the mouse scroll button to zoom in or out on that location. To center and zoom in on a location, double click the location.

## **Bing Maps**

- Arrows Click the appropriate arrow buttons to move the view north, south, east or west.
- Zoom In Click the zoom in icon (+). To zoom continuously, click and hold this button.
- Zoom Out Click the zoom in icon (-). To zoom continuously, click and hold this button.
- For more information on using Bing maps, click here.

## **Google Maps**

- Arrows Click the appropriate arrow buttons to move the view north, south, east or west.
- Street View Click to view street-level imagery
- Zoom Click + to zoom in on the center of the map. Click - to zoom out.
- Zoom slider Drag the zoom slider up or down to zoom in or out incrementally.
   When you click on a device location icon, an information box appears (see Figure 3 below).
   The information box also displays information related to the message on three tabs.



Figure 3 Map page with Message tab of Info Box

The Message tab shown on Figure 3, displays information related to the message. On this tab you will find all position information that was sent. This may include Latitude, Longitude, Speed, Heading and Altitude. Additionally, this tab will show you any text included in the message as well as the time the message was sent. The Device tab shown on Figure 4, displays information related to the device that sent the message. On this tab you will find the friendly name of the device, device identifier (often the IMEI of the

device), the device user and a photo.

If you haven't uploaded a photo, a stock photo of your device may be shown. The friendly name of your device and the photo may be changed on the My Device page.



Figure 4 Map page with Device tab of Info Box



The Track tab displays options for drawing the device track within specified time interval. The "Show Track" link retrieves all position information and shows track on the map. When the track is already shown the text of the link is changed to "Hide Track". Clicking Hide Track removes selected track from the map. The default time interval is 7 days from the last received message containing position information.



Figure 5 Map page with Track tab of Info Box

The start or end date can be changed by clicking the date and selecting date on the calendar control (see Figure 6 below), the track is automatically shown or updated for selected time interval (see Figure 7 below).



Figure 6 Track tab calendar control

The device track is shown with light blue dots representing received messages. Clicking any of the dots displays the Info Box for the message.



Figure 7 Device Track shown on the Map page



Additional options may be available from the bottom of information box:

- Zoom Selecting this option causes the map to automatically zoom in to a smaller scale
- Show Inbox Opens Inbox page with the current message selected
- Ping Device Sends a message to the device requesting it to report its current location.
   Please note that if the device is in standby mode or powered off, the message will be queued at the Iridium gateway for delivery and the device will not respond immediately (this option is only available if the device supports receiving messages)
- Send Message Opens the compose message page for sending a message to the device

Whilst on this page, you will be notified via a pop up box if a new message is received.

The Map footer contains the following information:

This feature may be disabled by your Service Provider

## 🤣 Refresh

Refresh – This option updates the map with the latest position messages without reloading the whole page. Last Check – This is the last time the portal checked to see if there are any updates from the selected device or devices.

Last Message – If a single device is selected then this is the date and time of the most recent message. If all devices are selected then this shows the date and time of the most recent message from all the devices. LAT/LNG – This shows the latitude and longitude of the mouse pointer on the map.



**3D Map** – This option allows you to view your position on Google Earth. Note: The google earth plug-in must be installed on your machine to use this feature.



Figure 8 Notification that the current device has received a new

message

## 3.1 3D Map

You may also view your position on Google Earth by using the 3D Map link in the bottom toolbar. This feature is particularly useful when your position is near either the South or North Pole. Note: The detailed position information shown in the information boxes on the normal map is not available while using the 3D Map. Options available from the bottom toolbar:

## **Status Bar**

This option will display a status bar with information about the current location you are viewing on the map

## Grid

This option will add longitude and latitude lines to the map

## Scale Legend

This option will add a legend to the map showing the scale.

## Track Start Date, Track End Date, Show/Hide Track

These options can be used together to show (or hide) a track for a particular device. Just enter the start and end dates for the track you wish to view and then hit the Show/Hide Track button

## 💹 Map

Use this option to return to the regular map.



Figure 9 Device position shown on the 3D Map



## 4. Inbox

The **Inbox** page shows messages received from the device in reverse chronological order. The icons displayed against each row have the following meanings:



## **Position report**

This is the position of the device at the time the message is sent.



## **Standard Message**

This is a text message.



## Canned Messages

This is a canned message.



## System Message

This is a system message (System Test, Diagnostics Response, Request Device Identifier Response, or Synchronising Data over the Air).



## **Emergency Message**

This is a message indicating that the emergency function of the device was activated.



## **Cancel Emergency Message**

This is an emergency cancellation message.



### All other messages

Hovering over the icon will let you know the type of message.

Columns in the grid have the following meaning: **Time** 

The time the device reported (UTC or user local time when set on the User Profile page). When hovered over, this column displays a popup with the time in standard UTC format.

#### Message

The body of the message.

#### Recipient

The address to which the message was destined. This is typically an address book entry. Hovering the mouse over this field will show the expanded address book entry.

## Position

The position of device at the time of the report. For messages with a valid location, clicking on the position jumps to the location of the device on the Map page.

## Speed

The velocity of the device at the time of the report (km per hour).

## Heading

The course over ground.

#### Altitude

The elevation in meters.

#### Source

Indicates the source of the position (For most devices this is the in-built GPS. Some devices support other location technologies e.g. Doppler).

Note that some columns will appear blank for some messages. For example, the position, heading, altitude, and source columns will be blank when viewing a text message without a position. The first page of messages will be automatically displayed. If you have more messages, page numbers will display below the table. Click on the page number to jump to that page of messages. Please note that the maximum number of messages that are visible is 1000. Once a device has exceeded this limit, only the most recent 1000 are visible. If you wish to keep a history, then you are advised to export the data using the link provided.

Time         Message         Recipients         Position         Speed         Heading         Athade         Searce           2/00/2012 13:00.05         Ahoj         Me         21'118.07N 157'55.06W         18.52 kmh         00'         5m         0ps           2/00/2012 12:58:20         Manual Position Report         DV         52'45.51N 001'50:20E         18.52 kmh         00'         5m         0ps           2/00/2012 10:55:00         Gedence crossed by the device, device outside gedence         Geo/Fence         0ps/Fence         35'7 74h 110'56.48W         18.52 kmh         00'         5m         0ps           2/00/2012 10:55:00         Automatic Position Report         RUR         35'7 74h 110'56.48W         18.52 kmh         00'         5m         0ps           2/00/2012 10:55:01         Automatic Position Report         RUR         35'7 74h 110'20'20'W         18.52 kmh         00'         5m         0ps           2/00/2012 10:55:01         Automatic Position Report         RUR         35'47 18h 120'20.0W         18.52 kmh         00'         5m         0ps           2/00/2012 10:50:47         Automatic Position Report         RUR         35'47 18h 120'20'20'W         18.52 kmh         0'         5m         0ps           2/00/2012 10:40:42         Emergency	box for device: (	My Device						0	My Device
2 2003/2012 13:00.05       Alvoj       Me       21118 EDN 157755.00W       18.52 kmh 001'       5m       Ops         2 2003/2012 12:58:20       Manual Position Report       BUR       52'48.51N 001'50:20E       18.52 kmh 90'       5m       Ops         2 2003/2012 10:59:52       Automatic Position Report       RUR       33'57 74h 110'56.48W       18.52 kmh 90'       5m       Ops         2 2003/2012 10:55:00       Gedence crossed by the device outside gedence       GeoFence       97.4 10N 120''3.02W       18.52 kmh 90'       5m       Ops         2 2003/2012 10:55:01       Automatic Position Report       RUR       39'4.10N 120''3.02W       18.52 kmh 90'       5m       Ops         2 2003/2012 10:55:01       Automatic Position Report       RUR       39'4.10N 120''3.02W       18.52 kmh 90'       5m       Ops         2 2003/2012 10:50:1       Automatic Position Report       RUR       39'4.20N 120''2.02W       18.52 kmh 90'       5m       Ops         2 2003/2012 10:50:1       Automatic Position Report       RUR       39'4.20N 120''2.02W       18.52 kmh 90'       5m       Ops         2 2003/2012 10:40:42       Cancel Emergency       ECC       39'4.72N 120''2.20W       18.52 kmh 90'       5m       Ops         2 2003/2012 10:40:42       Emergency       ECC       <	Time	Message	Recipients	Position	Speed	Heading	Altitude	Source	Map
27032012125820       Manual Position Report       B2*43.51N 001*50.20E       18.52 kmh 90*       5 m       0pr         27032012105952       Automatic Position Report       RUR       33*57 74h 110*56.48W       18.52 kmh 90*       5 m       0pr         27032012105952       Automatic Position Report       RUR       33*57 74h 110*56.48W       18.52 kmh 90*       5 m       0pr         27032012105550       Gedence crossed by the device cubide gedence       0pr       97.410N 120*3.02W       18.52 kmh 90*       5 m       0pr         27032012105051       Automatic Position Report       RUR       39*47.10N 120*3.02W       18.52 kmh 90*       5 m       0pr         27032012105047       Automatic Position Report       RUR       39*47.10N 120*2.02W       18.52 kmh 90*       5 m       0pr         27032012105047       Automatic Position Report       RUR       39*47.20N 120*2.02W       18.52 kmh 90*       5 m       0pr         270320121049422       Cancel Emergency       ECC       39*47.20N 120*2.02W       18.52 kmh 90*       5 m       0pr         27032012104925       Emergency       ECC       39*47.20N 120*2.02W       18.52 kmh 90*       5 m       0pr         27032012104925       Emergency       ECC       39*47.20N 120*9.2W       18.52 kmh 90*       5 m </td <td>27/03/2012 13:00:05</td> <td>Ahoj</td> <td>Me</td> <td>21118 62N 157'55 06W</td> <td>18.52 km/h</td> <td>90'</td> <td>5m</td> <td>Gps</td> <td>🖾 Inbox</td>	27/03/2012 13:00:05	Ahoj	Me	21118 62N 157'55 06W	18.52 km/h	90'	5m	Gps	🖾 Inbox
27032012 10 59:52       Automatic Position Report       PUR       33"57 74% 110"56 440W       16.52 km/h       5 m       Depsier         27032012 10 55:50       Gedence crossed by the device outside gedence       GeoFence       39"4.10N 120"3.02W       16.52 km/h       90"       5 m       Ope         27032012 10 55:50       Automatic Position Report       RUR       39"4.10N 120"3.02W       18.52 km/h       90"       5 m       Ope         27032012 10 55:51       Automatic Position Report       RUR       39"4.10N 120"3.02W       18.52 km/h       90"       5 m       Ope         27032012 10 50:47       Automatic Position Report       RUR       39"47.10N 120"2.02W       18.52 km/h       90"       5 m       Ope         27032012 10 49:42       Cancel Emergency       ECC       39"47.20N 120"9.20W       18.52 km/h       90"       5 m       Ope         27032012 10.49:55       Their sthe mer       Ke       31"47.27N 120"9.20W       18.52 km/h       90"       5 m       Ope         27032012 10.49:55       Their sthe mer       Me       31"47.27N 120"9.20W       18.52 km/h       90"       5 m       Ope         27032012 10.49:55       Automatic Position Report       RUR       31"47.27N 120"9.20W       18.52 km/h       90"       5 m       Ope <td>27/03/2012 12:58:20</td> <td>Manual Position Report</td> <td></td> <td>52"48.51N 001"50.20E</td> <td>18.52 km/h</td> <td>90*</td> <td>5m</td> <td>Ope</td> <td>Address Book</td>	27/03/2012 12:58:20	Manual Position Report		52"48.51N 001"50.20E	18.52 km/h	90*	5m	Ope	Address Book
27/03/2012 10.55:50       Gedence crossed by the device outside gedence.       Geo/Fence       39/4.19/1.12/13.02/W       18.52 km/h       90'       5m       Ope         27/03/2012 10.55:50       Automatic Position Report       RUR       39/4.19/1.12/13.02/W       18.52 km/h       90'       5m       Ope         27/03/2012 10.55:01       Automatic Position Report       RUR       39/4.19/1.12/13.02/W       18.52 km/h       90'       5m       Ope         27/03/2012 10.50:01       Automatic Position Report       RUR       39/4.19/1.12/13.02/W       18.52 km/h       90'       5m       Ope         27/03/2012 10.50:47       Automatic Position Report       ECC       39/4.29/1.12/19.20/W       18.52 km/h       90'       5m       Ope         27/03/2012 10.49:22       Emergency       ECC       39/4.79/1.12/19.20/W       18.52 km/h       90'       5m       Ope         27/03/2012 10.49:25       The is the mer       Me       31/4.75/1.12/19.20/W       18.52 km/h       90'       5m       Ope         27/03/2012 10.49:15       The is the mer       Me       31/4.75/1.12/19.20/W       18.52 km/h       90'       5m       Ope         27/03/2012 10.49:16       The is the mer       Me       31/4.75/1.12/19.20/W       18.52 km/h       90'       5m	27/03/2012 10:59:52	Automatic Position Report	RUR	38'57 74N 110'56 48W	18.52 km/h	90"	5m) :	Doppler	Ceofence
2703/2012 10.55.01       Automatic Position Report       RUR       39'4.10W 120'3.02W       18.52 kmh 90'       5 m       Opa         2703/2012 10.50.47       Automatic Position Report       RUR       38'47'13N 120'8.72W       18.52 kmh 90'       5 m       Opa         2703/2012 10.50.47       Automatic Position Report       RUR       38'47'13N 120'8.72W       18.52 kmh 90'       5 m       Opa         2703/2012 10.49.42       Cancel Entergency       ECC       39'47.25N 120'9.20W       18.52 kmh 90'       5 m       Opa         2703/2012 10.49.42       Emergency       ECC       39'47.35N 130'9.21W       18.52 kmh 90'       5 m       Opa         2703/2012 10.49.52       Emergency       ECC       39'47.25N 120'9.21W       18.52 kmh 90'       5 m       Opa         2703/2012 10.49.52       This is the river       Me       34'47.27N 120'9.25W       18.52 kmh 90'       5 m       Opa         2703/2012 10.47.12       Automatic Posation Report       RUB       34'47.27N 120'9.25W       18.52 kmh 90'       5 m       Opa	27/03/2012 10:55:50	Geofence crossed by the device, device outside geofence	GeoFence	39'4.10N 120'3.02W	18.52 km/h	90*	5m	Ope	My Device
2/2032012 10.50.47         Automatic Position Report         PUR         38*47 13N 120*8.72W         18.52 kmih 90*         5 m         Ope           2/2032012 10.69.42         Cancel Entergency         ECC         30*47.25N 120*9.20W         18.52 kmih 90*         5 m         Ope         Admin           2/2032012 10.69.42         Emergency         ECC         30*47.25N 120*9.20W         18.52 kmih 90*         5 m         Ope         Admin           2/2032012 10.49.42         Emergency         ECC         30*47.25N 120*9.21W         18.52 kmih 90*         5 m         Ope           2/2032012 10.49.52         Emergency         ECC         30*47.25N 120*9.21W         18.52 kmih 90*         5 m         Ope           2/2032012 10.49.55         This is the river         Me         30*47.27N 120*9.25W         18.52 kmih 90*         5 m         Ope           2/2032012 10.49.512         Automatic Position Report         RUB         30*47.27N 120*9.27W         18.52 kmih 90*         5 m         Ope	27/03/2012 10:55:01	Automatic Position Report	RUR	39'4.19N 120'3.02W	18.52 km/h	90*	5m	Gps	Contraction of the second seco
2/2003/2012 10-89-42         Cancel Entergency         ECC         30*47.28% 12/0*9.20W         18.52 kmh 90*         5 m         Ope           2/2003/2012 10-89-22         Emergency         ECC         30*47.28% 12/0*9.20W         18.52 kmh 90*         5 m         Ope           2/2003/2012 10-89-22         Emergency         ECC         30*47.25% 12/0*9.21W         18.52 kmh 90*         5 m         Ope           2/2003/2012 10-89-56         This is the river         Me         30*47.27% 12/0*9.29W         18.52 kmh 90*         5 m         Ope           2/2003/2012 10-89-512         Automatic Pacition Record         RUB         30*47.27% 12/0*9.29W         18.52 kmh 90*         5 m         Ope	27/03/2012 10:50,47	Automatic Position Report	RUR	38'47 13N 120'8.72W	18.52 km/h	90*	5m	Gps	е нер
27/03/2012 10:49:22         Emergency         ECC         30'47.35N 120'9.21W         18.52 kmh 90'         5 m         Gas           27/03/2012 10:48:56         This is the river         Me         30'47.27N 120'9.29W         18.52 kmh 90'         5 m         Ope           27/03/2012 10:49:12         Automatic Pacintics Report         PUB         30'47.27N 120'9.29W         18.52 kmh 90'         5 m         Ope	27/03/2012 10:49:42	Cancel Emergency	ECC	38'47 28N 120'9 28W	18.52 km/h	90*	5 m	Ope	Admin
2703/2012 10:48:55         This is the river         Me         30"47.27% 120"9.25W         18:52 km/h         90"         5 m         Ops           2703/2012 10:47.12         Automatic Pasition Record         PUB         33"47.27% 120"9.25W         18:52 km/h         90"         5 m         Ops	27/03/2012 10:49:22	Emergency	ECC	38'47.35N 120'9.21W	18.52 km/h	90"	5m	Cen	
2200/2012 10.47.12 Automatic Paulion Report RUB 33/47.27N 12019 25W 18.52 km/s 501 5 m Gen	2703/2012 10:48:56	This is the over	Me	30"47 27N 120"9 25W	18.52 km/h	90'	5m	Ops	
	27032012 10:47:12	Automatic Position Report	RUR	38147.27N 12019 25W	18.52 km/h	90"	5m	Gps	
	D Front To Front								

Figure 10 Messages from the Device



## 4.1 Inbox – All Devices

If you have access to more than one device, you will notice the Inbox page looks slightly different when viewing it for all devices. When the page is initially shown, you will see your list of devices with the most recently reported device at the top. Simply click the right arrow next to the message time to display detailed message information for that device. Once expanded, you may click the down arrow to collapse the detailed message information. The Sent Messages page for all devices displays in a similar manner.

nbox: Latest me	ssage for all de	vices							0	All Devices
Latent Measage T	line .	Device			Latest Mossoge					
2004/2012 10:05:05	Device #5		Hels Test							Map
2604/2012 16:01:42	RLand Ex	depende .	Manual Postion Report	•						🖂 Inbox
Tame		Message		Fincipients	Position	lipent	Heating	Allante	Bearce	Sent Messages
25/540012 16:01:42	Hanual Ponikce Report.				7270 00% (1876 00#	18.52 km/h	00*	5.0	Ops.	My Devices
J 25/54/2012 15:38:32	Oatth				22154.000 (2010.006	18.52 km/h	60*	5.0	Deepler	and the Property
25/04/2012 15:38:16	at ai		100		22"HLDDH 037"HLDDE	18.52 levels	00*	50	Get	Ser Profile
1 2566/2012 15.37.40	Caluar Energence		120		TRUCK CONCOME	18.52 8-0	10'	5-11	Own	😧 Help
25042012 15 38 52	Lorgena		100		23*0.00M 333*0.00E	18.57 km/h	90'	50	Ope	Admin
a 2404/2012 12 07 18	Adversion Propilitati Planare	4	8.8		Service and	18.52 km/h	90*	50	Ove	New York Control of the
2404/2012 11:58:37	Tax Tax but		100		547230620473408	18.57 kmh	90*	50	- Ques	
7 34542012113814	Court Courtman		67		12-7 Mile 2017 448	1812 keep	607	5.0	0	
1 140400121148.0K	Income		800		Contraction operations	18574-0	0.01	1.0	-	
adutora - 12000	Manual Radius Raised				A Property March 199	18.57 (	100 M	A.C.		
and a second second	Contraction of the second second					No de Britis		100		
Statest										
29/04/2012 14 04:00	M Mobe F1	1	Periodic Postion Repo	e (At Sea) (4)						
25/04/2012 13:43:27	M Yellowbr	ick FI	Popilion report caused	by ALEPT button prant (	Batt 82% Targe 1510					
25/34/2012 13:35 19	Millional El	L.	Positor separt							
25/04/3012 13 14:11	M V1.9 land	87	Automatic Position Rep	64 ·						
25062012101125	Fault Device		Emergency, Yes							
25042012 13 04 25	M Droutlin	ens ET.	Peokie separt							
34562012161922	Rhanker	1	B4(2,3,2,1							
24042012113857	M V13 level	a1	Envergence CM 1e							
160420121338.04	M VI E and	00	test ca							
2805/2012/20 46 43	R Shout		Position report							
2203201215.2319	T Yellow D	ra.	Peaker report asser!	ly manual Sulton press.	paging terminated					
27/00/2012 15 28:00	T Mobg #7		Periodo Poetion Repo	# (A.See) (5)						

Figure 11 Inbox for all devices showing message details for one device

## 5. Sent Messages

The Sent Messages page displays all messages sent to a device in reverse chronological order. This includes messages sent from the portal itself and messages sent from an external source but routed through the portal. Figure 12 shows an example screenshot of Sent Messages page in the portal. The columns have the following meaning:

#### **Time Sent**

The time the message was queued for transmission to the device (UTC or user local time when set in user's profile). When hovered over, displays a popup showing the time in UTC format.

#### **Sender Address**

This is originator of the message. This column

will display "SERVER" if the message was automatically sent to the device from the portal in response to a request e.g. a location request. If the portal receives and external message to route to a device (e.g. an email reply from a device text message), then this column will display the sender's email address.

## Message Type

The type of the message sent to the device.

#### **Message Text**

This is normally body text of the message for text messages. In some cases it contains additional information about the message. Messages can be sent to the device in a number of ways. Typically, this is done through the Compose page. However, messages can be sent from another device, in reply to an email message or from an SMS device. In all cases, any messages routed through the portal will appear on this page. For some devices the portal may automatically respond to emergency, power up and test messages that are initiated on the device. In these cases a record of the message sent to the device will appear here. To view earlier messages, use the paging buttons at the bottom of the grid. You may view up to a maximum of 1000 messages. The messages in your sent list can be exported to Excel, in CSV format, by using the 'Export To Excel' link at the bottom of the page.



Figure 12 Messages to the Device



## 6. Address Book

Address Book: MY DEVICE

Distance Rathancia Checking

A ALF & LOW WITH

C table here aren

() bid a late letter

Sector Annual Property of the International Property of the Intern

(3 kills net out

() .....

Hudes II

1------

**Friminghy** 

The Address Book page provides you with a view of the address book associated with the selected device.

Address book entries are grouped into Distribution Lists. Each Distribution List can contain multiple entries and each entry can be an email address, a mobile telephone number for SMS

-

-

-

......

-

Inst successful and set

Inst. August Sylvenseeing land

End and Balancing on

Existing Puters When the automatic specifies specified have the factor and a specific to define the

When A should be examined in a contribution from this design a start a result to the data before the Queekber. They is assumed possible respect to presented them they design with a result of the data before the Parkin

Man This device has not checked to and a searcher, and a concept to be derived in the Mankher Man in a conceptor exercise is concepted has the device control concept to be derived in the Parameter

When this design measure a periferent level is represented by the first day to the Republic between the transmission of the second second

When his assumption present message is relationed have this desired word a message in the classification for

warm Baldward region.

And Desire

Ant take

2 2

Kins Subar

2 0

Kids Kalkes

2 . 0

Edd Dates

12

12

2 3

-12

2 0

321

fare.

Taxe.

Tane .

These .

from 1

Tate

messages (if enabled for your account), or links to your Twitter or Facebook accounts. Rules can be created so that a Distribution List is notified automatically when some event occurs with the device. For example, when your device sends its position or when it crosses a geofence.

To add an entry to a distribution list click the "Add a New Distribution List" link. Simply give your Distribution List a name and click the "Add List" button.

	······································	Create Address Book Distribution List
0	NY DEVICE Mag Mag Address Book Address Book Centence My Devce Nuclear Parties Palo Address Address	Device: MY DEVICE Enter the name of the new Distribution List, then click the Add Lis Distribution List Add List or Cancel
		Figure 14 Create Distribution List screen

*Figure 13 Address Book with several Distribution Lists and Rules* 

GAP

To create a new address book entry, click the "Add a new entry" link under the Distribution List you want to add an entry to. The fields on the **Create Address Book** entry page, shown in Figure 15, have the following meaning:

## **Distribution List**

The name of the Distribution List the entry will be created in.

## Туре

The type of address book destination. This is most typically set to "Email". Other options are available including SMS (if enabled for your account), Facebook and Twitter. For more information about posting messages to Twitter and Facebook, see the User Profile section.

## Address

The email address (for an email recipient) or a telephone number (for SMS messages). If Facebook or Twitter is selected, then this field is not displayed.

Create Address	Book Entry	0	RST430 Sample
Device: My Dev	vice		Map
nter the new address I	book entry details, then click the Add Entry button.		🔤 Inbox
Distribution List	PositionReports		Address Book     Geofence
Туре	Email 💌		1 My Device
Address			User Profile     Help
Add Entry or Cancel			Admin 🤌
Add Entry or Cancel			🤌 Admin

Figure 15 Create Address Book Entry screen



## 6.1 Rules

Once you have created a Distribution List you can create a rule to alert a Distribution List when something happens. Simply click the "Add a new rule" link. The fields on the Add Rule page have the following meaning. **When:** The event that triggers a notification. For example when the device crosses a geofence, or when it reports its position.

**Send a message to this Distribution List:** The Distribution List that should be notified when the event occurs.

BEAM		Weitzette davide on yog voljihaam. Gried	annihundahlari dari 📲 Lirg t Davior: RST430 Semple
Add rule for my device Here you can create a rule to notify a Distribution List	when an event happens on your phone. See help for more details.	0	RST430 Sample
When	- Please select		Address Book
Send a message to this Distribution List	- Please select - 💌		Geofence
Add Entry or Cancel			User Profile  Help  Admin

Figure 16 Create Rule screen

## 7. Canned Messages

The Canned Messages page displays the currently configured canned messages for the selected device. Each device may store up to 30 canned messages, 15 of which are user defined; the other 15 messages are pre-set for the device by your service provider or administrator. To edit the canned message text:

- Click "Edit" on the appropriate grid row. The grid row will switch into edit mode.
- 2. Change the message text. To save changes, click "Save". To cancel changes, click "Cancel".
- 3. The new canned message text will then be sent to the device.



Figure 17 Canned Messages Screen



## 8. Compose Message

You may send a text message to a device from the Compose Message page as shown in Figure 18. Simply type your message in the "Message" box and click "Send Message".

The number of allowable characters remaining appears below the "Message" and is updated as you type. You also have the option to send a copy of the message to yourself (the email address with which you logged in). Depending on device type, you may also be able to request an acknowledgement from the device.

If you have access to more than one device, you can send your message to multiple devices by clicking on the "To" button. Then simply click on the check box next to the additional devices you wish to send your message to. (Note: Users with access to only one device, the "To" button will appear as normal text.) Note: Different devices support different message lengths, thus in order to ensure your entire message is delivered, it is suggested your message is 160 characters or less.

BE	EAM	Welcome Enlect	evice: My Device
ompose r	nessage to device: My Device	0	All Devices
From	support@g/oba/alerting.com		map Inbox
To	My Device		Address Book
Message			Ganned Messages
			My Device
			I User Profile
			😣 Help
	974 characters remaining		/* Admin
Send a copy	of this message to support eglobalaiering com		
Request ack	nowledgement from device when message is received		
Send Messag			

Figure 18 Composing a text message

## 9. Geofence

A geofence is a virtual perimeter around a real world geographic area The Geofence page may be used to set up a geofence for your device. Once a geofence is configured on the portal, the user is notified whenever the geofence is crossed. Geofence traversal is monitored by the platform for all devices (except Iridium Extreme devices). Two types of geofence are supported; circular, where the fenced-in area is a circle, or polygon, where the fenced in area is defined by a line joining up to 8 separate coordinates. In addition, users may opt to use predefined geofences which can be configured by an administrator. To begin, click the link to "Create Circular Geofence" or "Create Polygon Geofence".

#### **Circular Geofence**

To create a circular geofence, first double-click the left mouse button to place centre point of the circle. Then, double click the left mouse button again to confirm the radius of the circle. Clicking the right button will clear the geofence and allow you to begin again. The centre point and radius can be adjusted by clicking and dragging the pushpins.



Figure 19 Geofence screen with no associated geofence.



#### **Polygon Geofence**

To create a polygon geofence, double-click the left mouse button to place each point of the polygon. A maximum of eight points can be placed on the map. Clicking the right button will clear the geofence and allow you to begin again. Any of the vertices can be re-positioned by clicking and dragging the numbered pushpin. Please note that you are not permitted to save a polygon geofence that has intersecting lines.

#### **Fence Width**

If the user is alerted they have crossed the geofence, they must move a minimum of this distance back to be considered to have crossed back. For example, if the fence width is set to 50 meters, and you cross out of the geofence, you must move at least 50 meters back from the fence to be considered to have crossed back in. (Please see the device specific appendix at the end for more information on geofences.) Once a geofence has been created, it will be shown on a map. To see the details of the geofence, hover over the text "Geofence Settings" in the box in the upper right corner of the map (See Figure 20). To delete the geofence click the link "Delete this Geofence" in the same box.

Note that only one geofence may be active on a device at a time.



*Figure 20 Geofence screen with associated circular geofence* 

## 10. My Device

The My Device page is split into several sections. Please note that the contents of this page will vary greatly depending on your device type and portal version. Below, we have attempted to describe all fields that you may see on this page. You should not expect to see all fields or even all the sections described below.

BEAM	Welcome da	vide.carpegna@beam: Selec	t Device: RST430 Sample
My Device: RST43	30 Sample	Ø	RST430 Sample
Device Id	30300000000001		
Friendly Name	My Device		
Description	Not set		Address Book
Image	Notset		Seofence
Device Type	Iridium Extreme		My Device
Device Monitoring Interval	No Monitoring		Lines Drefie
Device Monitoring Buffer	No Buffer		User Profile
Email Delivery	Disabled		😔 Help
Device Phone Number	Not set		🧈 Admin
Registration Code	17172		
PIN Code	63847		
Dynamic Geofence Radius 🔒	Not set (Dynamic Geofence Disabled)		
Use GEOS Alliance 😣	No		

Figure 21 My Device Screen showing ALL options



## 10.1. Device Information

The Device Information section displays important information about your device.

## **Device Id**

This is normally the devices IMEI (International Mobile Equipment Identity) number, but can also be a different identifier that uniquely identifies the device.

#### **Friendly Name**

The name used to refer to the device on the portal. If no friendly name exists for the device, the IMEI number will appear instead. You may edit this name by selecting the "Edit" icon.

#### Description

The user entered description of the device.

## Image

A user uploaded image of their device.

#### **Device Type**

The type of device currently being viewed. Device Monitoring Interval – If enabled, devices may be monitored by BEAM Web Portal. The monitoring interval may be set here. A rule can be created on the Address Book page to notify a distribution list when a device becomes overdue.

## **Device Monitoring Buffer**

The Monitoring Buffer is a set period of time that BEAM Web Portal will wait after the

Monitoring Interval is exhausted before marking a device overdue.

#### **Email Delivery**

Users can opt to receive email directly on their device. Once this feature had been enabled for a device the email address will show here. This feature is not enabled by default and must be turned on here before email can be sent directly to the device. Note that only the first 160 characters of the email will be sent to the device.

### **Device Phone Number**

The device phone number provided on the SIM card (optional). You may edit this name by selecting the "Edit" icon. If entered, this number is sent to GEOS in the event of an emergency.

## **Registration Code**

The code number, created on the device, which must be entered during the registration process.

#### PIN Code

The code number from the portal that must be entered into the device to indicate that the device is registered with the portal.

## **Dynamic Geofence Radius**

A Dynamic Geofence can be used to alert you if the device has moved too far since its last position. When a Dynamic Geofence has been set up for a device, a circular region is created around the device's last position with the selected radius. The next time the device reports its position, if it is outside of the region it is considered to have crossed its geofence. On the Address Book page, you can set up a rule to alert you if this geofence is crosssed.

#### **Use GEOS Alliance**

This option is only available to users of Iridium Extreme devices. Users of this device can register with GEOS Alliance and have their emergency message sent directly to GEOS. Please note that you must register the device with GEOS before using this feature.

## **10.2. Latest Position Information**

The Latest Position Information section contains information about the last time your device reported its position to the portal.

## **Last Reported On**

This is the time that the device last reported its position.

#### **Last Reported Position**

Last reported position of the device.

### **Request Device Identifier**

The My Devices page includes a means to request the device identifier. The device identifier is the value stored in the first "My Number" slot on the device's SIM card, normally the device's phone number. Pressing the "Request Device Identifier" button will send a message to the device (visible on the "Sent Messages" page) requesting it send a response message containing the device identifier. The response message will appear on the "Inbox" screen.

#### **Request Device Diagnostics**

The "Request Device Diagnostics" feature works the same as the "Request Device Identifier" feature, except the response message will include diagnostic information for the device. Diagnostic information returned will include battery voltage, charger status, accumulator range, visible satellites, firmware version and hardware version. This information can useful when diagnosing a fault with your service provider.

#### **Request Device Location**

The "Request Device Location" feature works the same as the "Request Device Identifier" feature, except the response message will include the devices current location.

#### Manual Check In

This option creates a check in message for the device so that the device is not considered overdue. The purpose of this option is to allow an administrator check in the device when the user of the device is otherwise unable to. (For example if a user's device runs out of battery and the user instead calls into the portal administrator.)

## **10.3. Device Configuration**

Device Configuration is data that is stored on the device, and is normally edited on the device. However, you can remotely update your device by using this page and sending the settings to the device.

It is important to note that the information displayed on this screen is only sent to the device when the device is first switched on. When the portal receives a switch-on message from the device, it automatically sends the changed configuration. Thus, if you update the information here, the changes will not be displayed on the portal until the device is re-started and a new switch-on message has been received. It is also important to note that if the device is not turned on, it will not receive the updated configuration settings until it is turned back on.

## 10.4. Check-In Schedule

Check-in schedules can be used to specify times when a device must check in. A device that hasn't reported according to its schedule will be marked overdue, and an alert will be sent to all users in the "Check In Schedule" address book list. Users can either define their own check in schedule or use one created by an administrator. Users can create a schedule based on "Selected Times" or "Intervals". For selected times, the user need only specify the times that a device must check in. For intervals, the user must specify the start and end time in addition to the interval. The "Buffer Period" is the time before or after the check in time that the user may send a message to the portal.



ly Device: RST43	0 Sample	0	RST430 Sample
reate Check In Sc	hedule		Map
ter the new check in sched	ule details, then click the Add Check In Schedule button.		inbox
Name			Address Book
Time Zone	(UTC) Dublin, Edinburgh, Lisbon, London +		Geofence
Buffer Period (Minuten)			User Profile
Selected Days	ℝ Sunday ℝ Monday ℝ Tuesday ℝ Wednesday ℝ Thursday ℝ Friday ℝ Saturday		😔 Help
Schedule Type	Intervals •		Admin 🧪
Interval	- Please solect - *		
Start Time	- Please select - +		
End Time	- Please select +		



Figure 22 Create Check In Schedule Screen

## 10.5. My Devices

The My Devices page is only visible to users with access to more than one device. This page shows a list of devices accessible to the currently logged in user, as well as the friendly name for that device. The page gives a quick view into all the devices visible to the logged in user. Clicking on the friendly name of a device will select that device and navigate the user to the My Device page for the device.



Figure 23 My Devices Screen



## 11. User Profile

The User Profile page includes information relating to the current logged in user. This contact information will be included in the emergency email messages in the event of an alert being received by a device.

Iser Profile: davide.carpe	gna@beamcommunications.com	n	0	RST430 Sample
User Profile User M First Name Last Name Country Address Town/City State/Region Zig/Postal Code Daytime Telephone Evaning Telephone	Source Conternal Services  Source Conternal Ser			Map Inbox Address Book Geofence My Device User Profile Help Admin
Time Zone	(UTC) Dublin, Edinburgh, Liebon, London			
Culture	English (United Kingdom)			
Мар Туре	Google Maps	-		
Password	Change Your Password			
Security Question and Answer	Change Your Security Question and Anover			

Figure 24 User Profile Screen

## 11.1. User Profile

Name, address and phone numbers (daytime, evening, mobile) of the device holder.

## Time Zone

When specified, the time displayed on portal pages is converted from UTC to time zone selected here.

## Culture

Specifies the format date and time display to be displayed.

## Password, Security Question and Answer

A user can change their password, security question and security answer with these options.

## 11.2. Emergency Contact Information

The information specified in this section will be included in the emergency email messages in the event of an alert being received by a device. Please note that if you add the GEOS emergency call centre address, this information is not sent to GEOS.

BEAM	Visionne deute aarpegrafities roomen seatore om Select Devoe - RST430 Seny	-# La ple
User Profile: davide.carpegna@beamcommunications.com	RST430 Sa Map	Imple
First Contact Name First Contact Address First Contact Mumber	Address Book	
Second Contact Name Second Contact Address Second Contact Number	😢 Holp 🥕 Admin	
Save Changes		

Figure 25 Emergency Contact Screen



## 11.3. External Services

You may authorize the portal to post status updates to your Facebook account or tweet to your Twitter account from this page. Simply click the appropriate link for Facebook or Twitter and you will be re-directed to the Facebook or Twitter site where you can sign in and authorize BEAM Web Portal to post on your behalf. Once you have authorized Facebook or Twitter, you may add it to a Distribution List in your Address Book. Any future messages sent from your device to that Distribution List will now also post the message to your Facebook or Twitter account. Please note that the process of redirecting you to Facebook or Twitter is to ensure that the connection is secure. At no time does BEAM Web Portal record or store your credentials for Facebook or Twitter. You can deactivate the links at any time from the portal or the social network sites.



Figure 26 Facebook & Twitter Authentication Screen

faceb	DOK abook helps you connect and share with the people in your life.
	Facebook Login
	Log in to use your Facebook account with Global Alerting Platform. Email: Password:
	Cogin or Sign up for Facebook Forgot your password?
	English (UK) Cymraeg English (US) Español Português (Brasil) Français (France) Deutsch Italiano العربية 🌾 >
facebook © 2011	Mobile * Find Friends * Badges * People * Pages * About * Advertising * Developers * Careers * Privacy * Term

Figure 27 Facebook Login Screen



An appro account The application ability to account Twitter? Sign Username or Email: Password:	seriously. Only click "Allow" for applications you trust. Allowin this application to connect to your account may give Global Alerting Platform access to your Direct Messages (DMs), or the ability to Tweet on your behalt. You may revoke access to this application at any time by visiting your Settings page.
--	--

Figure 28 Twitter Authentication Screen

## 11.4. Additional User Information

Your service provider may add fields for additional information that can be filled in about a user. This information may be shared with first responders and search and rescue organizations in the event of an emergency.

vice   All Devices
Emergency Contact Contact Services CAddisonal Oser information Contact

Figure 29 Additional User Information Screen



## 12. Appendix Device Specific Information

## 12.1. Iridium Extreme™

## **Registering Your Device**

When registering with the portal on your device via the \*#575# command, you will be prompted to enter a PIN number from the portal. This number can be found on the My Device page in the Device Information section

#### **Unregistering Your Device**

To unregister your device, from the idle screen, dial: \*#576# and press the green key. Under these circumstances, messages from the handset will no longer be sent to the portal. Please note that you may still be charged by your service provider. Please contact your service provider for more information.

#### Address Book

Please refer to Iridium Extreme User Manual, Chapter "8: Using the Phonebooks" (page 75) to add a distribution list to your device phonebook. In simple terms, create a new entry to "My Phonebook" then enter your Address Book Distribution name in the email field. For example, when you have an Address Book distribution list called "Friends", use the word "Friends" in the email address field on the device.

## **Canned Messages**

If you edit a canned message, the system will attempt to send synchronise the changes with your device. If the update does not succeed, for example, your device is switched off, then the next time your device is switched on, the system will synchronise all canned messages. If you have access to more than one device, you will be given the option to change canned messages for the selected device, or all your devices.

### Geofences

When using a geofence with an Iridium Extreme device, the geofence coordinates are sent to the device from the portal. The device then monitors its position internally and sends a message to the portal when the geofence has been traversed. The device also alerts the user on the device screen by means of an audible beep and an icon. When creating a geofence, you will be prompted to enter the following additional information:

- Refresh Rate in Minutes How often the Iridium Extreme<sup>™</sup> device should check to see if it has crossed the geofence. This minimum value is 1 minute.
- Send Message to Portal When Crossed If checked, a message will be sent to the portal when the device crosses the geofence. If left unchecked, no message will be sent to the portal when the device crosses the geofence.

Note that the device itself will always notify the user when the geofence is crossed.

## 12.2. Shout Nano™ Address Book

After editing your address book, you will need to synchronize the portal with your Shout device. To do this, download the Synchronisation tool. The Shout device has no features for adding or editing its address book. Therefore, you must synchronize. If you do not, then you will not be able to select a recipient and you will not be able to send text messages. Also, if you edit an address book entry and do not re-synchronize, then the portal will send the message to latest entries you created and not necessarily the intended recipient displayed on the device.

## **Canned Messages**

After editing your canned messages, you will need to synchronise the portal with your Shout device. To do this, download the Synchronisation tool. The Shout device has no features for adding or editing canned messages. Therefore, you must synchronize. If you do not, then you will not be able to select a canned message and will have to type the message in full on the device. Also, if you edit a canned message and do not re-synchronize, then the portal will send the latest version you created and not necessarily the intended text displayed on the device.



BEAM Communications Pty Ltd 8 Anzed Court, Mulgrave Victoria, 3170, AUSTRALIA

Tel: +61 3 8588 4500 Fax: +61 3 9560 9055

Web: www.beamcommunications.com Info: info@beamcommunications.com Support: support@beamcommunications.com

